EXHIBIT "E"

BK 1781 PG 6100 92 of 125

BY-LAWS

OF

KINGSFIELD LAKES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

DV 1701 DC /101 93 of 125

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Name, Principal Office, and Definitions	J
1.1.	Name	1
1.2.	Principal Office.	
1.3.	Definitions	
Article II	Membership: Meetings, Quorum, Voting, Proxies	
2.1.	Membership.	
2.2.	Change of Membership.	
2.3.	Place of Meetings.	
2.4.	Annual Meetings.	
2.5.	Special Meetings.	
2.6.	Notice of Meetings.	
2.7.	Waiver of Notice.	
2.8.	Adjournment of Meetings.	
2.9.	Voting.	
2.10.	Proxies.	
2.11.	Majority	
2.12.	Quorum.	
2.13.	Conduct of Meetings.	4
2.14.	Action Without a Meeting.	
2.15.	Order of Business.	5
Article III	Board of Directors: Selection, Meetings, Powers	5
A. Co	nposition and Selection	
A. Cu	magittan and Valactian	5
3.1.	Governing Body; Composition.	5
3.1. 3.2.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors.	5 5
3.1. 3.2. 3.3.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period.	5 5 5
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures.	5 5 5
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office.	5 5 5
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures.	5 5 5
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office.	5 5 5 6
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies.	5 5 6 7
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings.	5 5 6 7
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings.	5 5 6 7 7
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings.	5 5 6 7 7
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8. 3.9.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings. Notice; Waiver of Notice.	5 5 6 7 7 8
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8. 3.9. 3.10.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings. Notice; Waiver of Notice. Telephonic Participation in Meetings.	5 5 6 7 7 7 8 8
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8. 3.9. 3.10. 3.11.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings. Notice; Waiver of Notice. Telephonic Participation in Meetings. Quorum of Board.	5 5 6 7 7 7 8 8
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8. 3.9. 3.10. 3.11. 3.12. 3.13.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings. Notice; Waiver of Notice. Telephonic Participation in Meetings. Quorum of Board. Conduct of Meetings.	5 5 6 7 7 7 8 8 9
3.1. 3.2. 3.3. 3.4. 3.5. 3.6. B. Me 3.7. 3.8. 3.9. 3.10. 3.11. 3.12.	Governing Body; Composition. Number of Directors. Directors During Class "B" Control Period. Nomination and Election Procedures. Election and Term of Office. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. etings. Organizational Meetings. Regular Meetings. Special Meetings. Notice; Waiver of Notice. Telephonic Participation in Meetings. Quorum of Board.	5 5 6 7 7 7 8 8 9 9

OV 1701 OC 4109 ON 1/01 FO DIVZ 94 of 125

C.	Pow	vers and Duties	.10
3.	16.	Powers	.10
3.	17.	Duties.	.10
3.	18.	Compensation.	
3.	19.	Right of Class "B" Member to Disapprove Actions.	.11
3.	20.	Management	.11
3.	21.	Accounts and Reports.	.12
3.	22.	Right To Contract.	
3.	23.	Enforcement	
3.	24.	Board Training Seminar	
3.	25.	Board Standards.	
3.	26.	Conflicts of Interest; Code of Ethics.	.15
Articl	e IV	Officers	.15
4.	1.	Officers.	.15
4.	2.	Election and Term of Office.	
4.	3.	Removal and Vacancies.	.16
4.	4.	Powers and Duties.	.16
4.	5.	Resignation.	.16
4.	6.	Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Etc.	16
4.	7.	Compensation.	
4.	8.	President	
4.	9.	Vice President.	
4.	10.	Secretary	
4.	11.	Treasurer.	17
Articl	e V	Committees	18
5.	1.	General	18
5.	2.	Covenants Committee	18
5.	3.	Service Area Committees.	
5.	4.	Other Committees.	19
Articl	e VI	Miscellaneous	19
6.	1.	Fiscal Year.	19
6.		Parliamentary Rules.	
6	3.	Conflicts	
6.4	4.	Books and Records.	20
6	5.	Notices.	20
6	6	Amendment	21

BK 1781 PG 6103 95 of 125

BY-LAWS OF KINGSFIELD LAKES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Article I Name, Principal Office, and Definitions

1.1. Name.

The name of the corporation is Kingsfield Lakes Homeowners Association, Inc. (the "Association").

1.2. Principal Office.

The Association's principal office shall be located in the State of Florida. The Association may have other offices, either within or outside Florida, as the Board of Directors determines or as the Association's affairs require.

1.3. Definitions.

The words used in these By-Laws shall have their normal, commonly understood definitions. Capitalized terms shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Kingsfield Lakes, as it may be amended ("Declaration"), unless the context indicates otherwise. The interpretation of certain references, as set forth in Section 2.2 of the Declaration, shall also apply to the words used in these By-Laws.

Article II Membership: Meetings, Quorum, Voting, Proxies

2.1. Membership.

The Association initially shall have two classes of membership, Class "A" and Class "B," as more fully set forth in the Declaration. Provisions of the Declaration pertaining to membership are incorporated by this reference.

2.2. <u>Change of Membership</u>.

Change of membership in the Association shall be established by recording a deed or other instrument conveying record fee title to any Lot. The grantee named in such instrument shall, by acceptance of such instrument, become a Member of the Association, and the membership of the prior Owner shall terminate. The new Owner shall not be entitled to voting privileges until delivery of a copy of the conveyance instrument to the Association. The foregoing shall not, however, limit the Association's powers or privileges and the new Owner shall be liable for accrued and unpaid fees and assessments attributable to the Lot acquired.

C:\windows\TEMP\By Laws-rl.doc Rev.January 29, 2002

ACCEPTED IN OPEN SESSION 11-5-0'6 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MANATEE COUNTY

DV 1701 DC 4104 % of 125

2.3. Place of Meetings.

The Association shall hold meetings at its principal office or at such other place as the Board may designate.

Annual Meetings. 2.4.

The Association shall hold its first meeting, whether a regular or special meeting, within one year after the date of the Association's incorporation. The Board shall set the date and time of subsequent regular annual meetings to occur promptly after the anniversary date of the first annual meeting. Annual meetings may be conducted electronically (i.e., via the Internet, intranet, or teleconference) if and to the extent permitted by law.

2.5. Special Meetings.

The President may call a special meeting of the Association. It also shall be the President's duty to call a special meeting if so directed by Board resolution or upon petition of Members representing at least 30% of the total Class "A" votes in the Association, or such lower percentage as may be required by law.

If the President does not call a special meeting pursuant to Section 2.5 within 30 days after the date such written petition is delivered to the Association's Secretary, any Member signing the petition may set the time and place of the special meeting and give the Association notice pursuant to Section 2.6.

2.6. Notice of Meetings.

The Association's Secretary shall cause written notice stating the place, day, and hour of any Association meeting to be given in any manner permitted by Florida law. If permitted, notice may be posted in a conspicuous, prominent place within the Community, delivered by hand delivery, or sent by facsimile, electronic mail, or other electronic communication device, or such other manner of mother which is reasonably calculated, as the Board determines in its discretion. which is reasonably calculated, as the Board determines in its discretion, to provide personal notice Notice shall be given at least 10 but not more than 60 days for the state of the stat to Members. Notice shall be given at least 10 but not more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, by or at the direction of the President, the Secretary, or the officers or Persons and the meeting. meeting.

In case of a special meeting or when otherwise required by statute or these By-Laws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. No other business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice. Each first Mortgagee may designate a representative to attend special meetings.

If posted, notice shall be deemed delivered when posted. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Member at his or her address as it appears on the Association's records, with postage prepaid. If sent by facsimile, electronic mail, or such other electronic communication device, notice shall be deemed delivered

DV 1701 OC /10E DN 1701 FU DIVU 97 of 125

when transmitted to the Member at his or her address or number as it appears on the Association's records. Failure to receive actual notice of an Association meeting shall not affect the validity of any action taken at such meeting.

2.7. Waiver of Notice.

Waiver of notice of an Association meeting shall be the equivalent of proper notice. Any Member may waive, in writing, notice of any Association meeting, either before or after such meeting. A Member's attendance at a meeting shall be deemed a waiver by such Member of notice of the meeting unless the Member specifically objects to lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order. Attendance at a special meeting also shall be deemed a waiver of notice of all business transacted at the meeting unless an objection on the basis of lack of proper notice is raised before the business is put to a vote.

2.8. Adjournment of Meetings.

If the Association cannot hold a meeting because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Members who are present may adjourn the meeting to a time at least 5 but not more than 30 days from the date called for the original meeting. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called. If those in attendance at the original meeting do not fix a time and place for reconvening the meeting, or if for any reason a new date is fixed for reconvening the meeting after adjournment, the Association shall give the Members notice of the time and place for reconvening the meeting in the manner prescribed for regular meetings.

2.9. Voting.

Members shall have such voting rights as are set forth in the Declaration, which provisions are incorporated herein by this reference.

2.10. Proxies.

On any matter as to which a Member is entitled personally to cast the vote for his or her Lot, such vote may be cast in person or by proxy, subject to Florida law.

Every proxy shall be in writing specifying the Lot(s) for which it is given, signed by the Member or his or her duly authorized attorney-in-fact, dated, and filed with the Association's Secretary prior to the meeting for which it is to be effective. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the proxy, a proxy shall be presumed to cover all votes which the Member giving such proxy is entitled to cast, and in the event of any conflict between two or more proxies purporting to cover the same voting rights, the later dated proxy shall prevail, or if dated as of the same date, both shall be deemed invalid.

Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon: (a) conveyance of any Lot(s) for which it was given, (b) the Secretary's receipt of written notice of revocation of the

DV 1701 OC /10/ DN 1/01 FU 01/00 98 of 125

proxy or of the death or judicially declared incompetence of a Member who is an individual given to the person presiding over a meeting of the Association, or (c) 90 days from the meeting date for which the proxy was originally given, unless the proxy specifies a shorter period.

2.11. Majority.

As used in these By-Laws, the term "majority" shall mean those votes, Owners, or other group as the context may indicate totaling more than 50% of the total eligible number.

2.12. Quorum.

Except as these By-Laws or the Declaration otherwise provide, Members or their proxies entitled to cast 25% of the total Class "A" votes in the Association and the Class "B" Member shall constitute a quorum at all Association meetings. If no quorum is present at such a meeting, the meeting may be adjourned and reconvened on a later date. At such reconvened meeting, Members or their proxies entitled to cast 15% of the total Class "A" votes in the Association and the Class "B" Member, if such exists, shall constitute a quorum.

15%

2.13. Conduct of Meetings.

The President shall preside over all Association meetings, at which he or she is present, and the Secretary shall keep (or cause to be kept) the minutes of the meetings and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted and all other transactions occurring at such meetings. Declarant and Owners may tape record or videotape Association meetings subject to such reasonable rules as the Board may impose.

2.14. Action Without a Meeting.

Without holding a meeting pursuant to Sections 2.4 or 2.5, Members may take any action that Florida law requires or permits the Members to take at a meeting (subject to any limitations in the Governing Documents), if approved by Members representing at least the minimum number of votes in the Association necessary to authorize such action at a meeting, if all Members entitled to vote were present and voted. Such approval shall be evidenced by one or more written consents specifically authorizing the proposed action, dated and signed by Members holding the requisite votes. The Association need not give prior notice before soliciting such consent; however, the Association must send written consent forms to all Members for action authorized pursuant to this section to be valid. Members shall sign, date, and deliver such consents to the Association within 60 days after the Association's receipt of the earliest dated consent. The Association's Secretary shall file (or cause to be filed) such consents with the Association's minutes and the consents shall have the same force and effect as a vote of the Members at a meeting. Within 10 days after receiving authorization for any action by written consent, the Secretary shall give (or cause to be given) written notice to all Members entitled to vote who did not give their written consent, fairly summarizing the material features of the authorized action.

BK 1781 PG 6107 99 of 125

2.15. Order of Business.

The order of business at all annual meetings of the Members shall be as follows: (a) roll call to determine whether a quorum is represented; (b) proof of notice of the meeting or waiver of notice; (c) reading of minutes of the preceding annual meeting; (d) reports of officers; (e) reports of committees; (f) election of inspector(s) of election if an election is to be held; (g) election of Directors if applicable; (h) unfinished business; and (i) new business.

Article III Board of Directors: Selection, Meetings, Powers

A. <u>Composition and Selection</u>.

3.1. Governing Body; Composition.

The Board of Directors shall govern the Association's affairs. Each director shall have one vote. Directors need not be Members or residents of the Community. A director must be at least 18 years old. No more than one representative of any Member which is a legal entity, nor more than one occupant of any Lot, shall serve on the Board at a time, except in the case of directors that the Class "B" Member appoints.

3.2. Number of Directors.

The Board shall consist of the number of directors provided for in Section 3.5. The initial Board shall consist of the three directors identified in the Articles of Incorporation.

3.3. <u>Directors During Class "B" Control Period</u>.

The Class "B" Member shall have complete discretion in appointing, removing, and replacing directors during the Class "B" Control Period, except as otherwise provided in Section 3.5.

3.4. Nomination and Election Procedures.

(a) <u>Nominations and Declarations of Candidacy</u>. Prior to each election of directors, the Board shall prescribe the opening date and the closing date of a reasonable filing period in which every eligible person who has an interest in serving as a director may file as a candidate for any position to be filled by Class "A" votes. Nominations for election to the Board also may be made by a nominating committee. The nominating committee, if any, shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a Member, and two or more Members or representatives of Members. The nominating committee, if any, may make as many nominations for election to the Board as it shall in its discretion determine. In making its nominations, the nominating committee shall use reasonable efforts to nominate candidates representing the diversity which exists within the pool

DV 1701 DC 4100 DN 1/01 F0 D1V0 100 of 125

of potential candidates. The Board also shall permit nominations from the floor at any election meeting.

The Board shall give each candidate a reasonable, equal opportunity to communicate his or her qualifications to the Members and to solicit votes.

(b) <u>Election Procedures</u>. A Member may cast the vote(s) assigned to the Lot(s) which he or she owns for each position to be filled at an election. Cumulative voting is not allowed. That number of candidates equal to the number of positions to be filled who receive the greatest number of votes shall be elected.

3.5. Election and Term of Office.

Except as these By-Laws may otherwise specifically provide, election of directors shall take place at the Association's annual meeting. Notwithstanding any other provision of these By-Laws:

- (a) Within 90 days after termination of the Class "B" Control Period, the President shall call for an election by which the Class "A" Members shall be entitled to elect three of the five directors. The remaining two directors shall be appointees of the Class "B" Member. The directors elected by the Class "A" Members shall not be subject to removal by the Class "B" Member and shall serve until the first annual meeting following the termination of the Class "B" Control Period; however, if such annual meeting is scheduled to occur within 90 days after termination of the Class "B" Control Period, this subsection shall not apply and directors shall be elected in accordance with subsection (b) below.
- (b) Not later than the first annual meeting after the termination of the Class "B" Control Period, an election shall be held at which the Class "A" Members shall elect four of the five directors, with the two directors receiving the largest number of votes being elected for a feath term of two years and the remaining two directors being elected for a term of one year.

Until termination of the Class "B" membership, the Class "B" Member shall be entitled to appoint one director. Upon termination of the Class "B" membership, the director elected by the Class "B" Member shall resign and the remaining directors shall be entitled to appoint a director to serve until the next annual meeting, at which the Class "A" Members shall be entitled to elect a director to fill such position. Such director shall be elected for a term of two years.

Notwithstanding the stated length of any term, directors shall hold office until their respective successors have been elected.

Upon expiration of the term of each Class "A" Director elected pursuant to this subsection (d) and thereafter, a successor shall be elected for a term of two years.

DV 1701 DC 4100 DN 1101 FU 0107 101 of 125

3.6. Removal of Directors and Vacancies.

Any Class "A" Director may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of Class "A" Members holding a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of such director. Any director whose removal is sought shall be given notice prior to any meeting called for that purpose. Upon removal of a director, a successor shall be elected by the Class "A" Members entitled to elect the director so removed to fill the vacancy for the remainder of such director's term. Class "A" Directors may not be removed by the Class "B" Member.

Any Class "A" Director who has three consecutive unexcused absences from Board meetings, or who is more than 60 days delinquent (or occupies a Lot for which assessments are so delinquent) in the payment of any assessment or other charge due the Association may be removed by a majority vote of the Board, excluding the director at issue. If the director is removed, the Board may appoint a successor to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.

In the event of the death, disability, or resignation of a director, the Board may declare a vacancy and appoint a successor to fill the vacancy until the next annual meeting, at which time the Class "A" Members entitled to fill such directorship may elect a successor for the remainder of the term. If they fail to do so, the Board may appoint another director to fill the vacancy until filled by election.

This Section shall not apply to directors the Class "B" Member appoints nor to any director serving as Declarant's representative. Such directors may be removed and replaced only by the Class "B" Member or Declarant. The Class "B" Member or Declarant shall be entitled to appoint a successor to fill any vacancy on the Board resulting from the death, disability, or resignation of a director appointed by or elected as a representative of the Class "B" Member or Declarant.

B. Meetings.

3.7. Organizational Meetings.

Each Board shall hold its first meeting promptly after the annual membership meeting, at such time and place as the Board shall fix.

3.8. Regular Meetings.

The Board may hold regular meetings at such time and place as the Board shall determine, but the Board shall hold at least one such meeting during each fiscal year during the Class "B" Control Period (which may be the organizational meeting in the first year) and at least one per quarter thereafter.

DV 1701 DC 411A DN 1/01 FU D11V 102 of 125

3.9. Special Meetings.

The Board shall hold special meetings when called by written notice signed by the President, Vice President, or any two directors.

3.10. Notice; Waiver of Notice.

- (a) Notices of Board meetings shall specify the time and place of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the nature of any special business to be considered. The Board shall give notice to each director by: (i) personal delivery; (ii) first class mail, postage prepaid; (iii) telephone (either directly to the director or to a person at the director's office or home who would reasonably be expected to communicate such notice promptly to the director); or (iv) facsimile, electronic mail, or other electronic communication device, with confirmation of transmission. All such notices shall be given at the director's telephone number, fax number, electronic mail address, or sent to the director's address as shown on the Association's records. Notices sent by first class mail shall be deposited into a United States mailbox at least seven business days before the time set for the meeting, except in the event of an emergency. Notices given by personal delivery, telephone, or other device shall be delivered or transmitted at least 72 hours before the time set for the meeting.
- (b) Except for emergency meetings, notice of a Board meeting shall be posted in a conspicuous place within the Community at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting or provided in any other manner reasonably anticipated to provide notice to all Members, including publication in an Association newsletter with Community-wide circulation, posting on a Community cable television channel, or posting on a Community Internet or intranet page. In lieu of notice of each regular Board meeting, the Board may post or publish a schedule of upcoming Board meetings.
- (c) Transactions of any Board meeting, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if (i) a quorum is present, and (ii) either before or after the meeting each director not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the meeting's purpose. Notice of a meeting also shall be deemed given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting before or at its commencement about the lack of adequate notice.
- (d) Notice of any meeting at which assessments are to be established shall state that fact and the nature of the assessment.

3.11. <u>Telephonic Participation in Meetings</u>.

Members of the Board or any committee designated by the Board may participate in a Board or committee meeting by means of telephone or other electronic means, through which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation in this

DV 1701 PG 6111 103 of 125

manner shall constitute presence at the meeting for all purposes. Participants attending by electronic means may vote by electronic transmission.

3.12. Quorum of Board.

At all Board meetings, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the Board's decision, unless these By-Laws or the Declaration specifically provide otherwise. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting approves any action taken. If the Board cannot hold a meeting because a quorum is not present, a majority of the directors present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five nor more than 30 days from the date of the original meeting. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further notice.

3.13. Conduct of Meetings.

The President shall preside over all Board meetings at which he or she is present, and the Secretary shall keep a minute book of Board meetings, recording all Board resolutions and all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings.

3.14. Open Meetings; Executive Session.

Subject to the provisions of Section 3.15, all Board meetings shall be open to all Members. However, attendees other than directors may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless a director requests that they be granted permission to speak, and the Board concurs. In such case, the President may limit the time any such individual may speak. Declarant and Owners may tape record or video tape Board meetings subject to reasonable rules the Board imposes.

Notwithstanding the above, the President may adjourn any Board meeting and reconvene in executive session, and may exclude persons other than directors, to discuss with the Association's attorney matters relating to pending or threatened litigation which are protected by the attorney-client privileges, or to discuss among the Board any other matter of a sensitive nature, if Florida law permits. In such cases, no tape recording or videotaping will be permitted.

3.15. Action Without a Formal Meeting.

Any action to be taken or which may be taken at a Board meeting may be taken without a meeting if all directors sign a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote.

C:\windows\TEMP\By Laws-r1.doc

o

DV 1701 DC 2117 DN 1701 F0 0112 104 of 125

C. Powers and Duties.

3.16. <u>Powers</u>.

The Board shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for administering the Association's affairs and for performing all of the Association's responsibilities and exercising all of the Association's rights as set forth in the Governing Documents, and as provided by law. The Board may do or cause to be done on the Association's behalf all acts and things except those which the Governing Documents or Florida law require to be done and exercised exclusively by the membership generally.

3.17. Duties.

The Board's duties shall include, without limitation:

- (a) those obligations set forth in the Declaration and elsewhere in these By-Laws;
- (b) depositing all funds received on the Association's behalf in a bank depository which it shall approve, and using such funds to operate the Association; however, any reserve funds may be deposited, in the Board's business judgment, in depositories other than banks;
- (c) after termination of the Class "B" Control Period, submitting for bid any planned Association expenditure (whether for capital items, services, maintenance, or otherwise) anticipated to exceed \$15,000.00 in any fiscal year; however, the Board is not obligated to contract with or otherwise retain the services of the lowest bidder nor is it obligated to submit for bid the renewal of existing contracts;
- (d) enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Governing Documents and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of or against the Owners concerning the Association if, in the exercise of its business judgment, it deems it prudent to do so;
- (e) keeping books with detailed accounts of the Association's receipts and expenditures; and
- (f) maintaining, and retaining for the time periods required, the "official records" of the Association, as provided in Section 720.303(4) of the Florida Homeowners Association Act.

3.18. Compensation.

The Association shall not compensate a director for acting as such. The Association may reimburse any director for expenses incurred on the Association's behalf if approved by a majority of the other directors. In addition, nothing herein shall prohibit the Association from compensating a director for services or supplies he or she furnishes to the Association in a

BX 1701 PG 6113 105 of 125

capacity other than as a director pursuant to a contract or agreement with the Association. The foregoing also applies to any entity with which a director is affiliated.

3.19. Right of Class "B" Member to Disapprove Actions.

During the period of Class "B" membership, the Class "B" Member shall have a right to disapprove any action, policy, or program of the Association, the Board, and/or any committee which, in the Class "B" Member's discretion, would tend to impair rights or interests of Declarant, any Affiliate of Declarant's, or builders, interfere with development or construction of any portion of the Community, or diminish the level of services the Association provides.

- (a) <u>Notice</u>. The Association, the Board, and each committee shall give the Class "B" Member written notice of their meetings and proposed actions to be approved at their meetings (or by written consent in lieu of a meeting). The notice shall comply with the requirement for notice to directors under Section 3.10 and shall, except in the case of the regular meetings held pursuant to the By-Laws, set forth with reasonable particularity the agenda to be followed at such meeting.
- (b) Opportunity to be Heard. The Association, the Board, and each committee shall give the Class "B" Member the opportunity at any meeting to join in or to have its representatives or agents join in discussion from the floor of any prospective action, policy, or program which would be subject to the right of disapproval described in this Section.
- (c) Exercise of Rights. The Class "B" Member may exercise its right to disapprove at any time within 10 days following the meeting at which such action was proposed or, if the action is approved without a meeting, at any time within 10 days following receipt of written notice of the proposed action. The Class "B" Member, its representatives or agents, shall make its concerns, thoughts, and suggestions known to the Board and/or the members of the subject committee. This right to disapprove may be used to block proposed actions but shall not include a right to require any action or counteraction by the Association, the Board, or any committee. The Class "B" Member shall not use its right to prevent expenditures required to comply with applicable laws and regulations.
- (d) <u>Condition of Implementation</u>. No action, policy, or program subject to the Class "B" Member's right of disapproval shall become effective or be implemented until and unless the requirements of subsections (a) and (b) above have been met, and then subject to the Class "B" Member's rights under subsection (c).

3.20. Management.

The Board may employ a professional managing agent or agents, at such compensation as the Board may establish, to perform such duties and services as the Board shall authorize and are otherwise within the scope of the Board's authority. The Board may delegate such powers as are necessary to perform the manager's duties, but shall not delegate policy-making authority or the

DV 1701 DC 4114 DN 1701 FU D114 106 of 125

obligation to adopt a budget. The Board may contract with or employ Declarant or any of its Affiliates as managing agent or manager.

The Board may delegate to one or more of its members the authority to act on the Board's behalf on all matters relating to the duties of the managing agent or manager, if any, which might arise between Board meetings.

The Association shall not be bound, either directly or indirectly, by any management contract executed during the Class "B" Control Period unless such contract contains a right of termination which the Association may exercise with or without cause and without penalty at any time after termination of the Class "B" Control Period upon not more than 90 days written notice. After the Class "B" Control Period terminates, the Association may not terminate any management contract, or retain a new managing agent, without the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors and, during the Development and Sale Period, the approval of Declarant.

The Class "A" Members shall have no right to terminate a management contract during the Class "B" Control Period. Unless the Board otherwise grants such right, or unless the management contract otherwise provides, the Board may act in its discretion with respect to executing and terminating management contracts during the Class "B" Control Period. Any management contract may, among other things, authorize the managing agent to act as the Association's agent with respect to the expenditure of Association funds within the scope of the approved Association budget; however, the managing agent shall not be permitted to spend money in excess of the budget or reallocate greater than 10% of any budget line item without the Board's prior approval.

3.21. Accounts and Reports.

The following management standards of performance shall be followed unless the Board specifically determines otherwise:

- (a) Commencing at the end of the quarter in which the first Lot is sold and closed, the Board shall prepare financial reports for the Association at least quarterly containing:
- (i) an income statement reflecting all income and expense activity for the preceding period on a cash or accrual basis;
- (ii) a statement reflecting all cash receipts and disbursements for the preceding period;
- (iii) a variance report reflecting the status of all accounts in an "actual" versus "approved" budget format;
 - (iv) a balance sheet as of the last day of the preceding period; and

DV 1701 OC 4115 DN 1/O1 FU O113 107 of 125

- (v) a delinquency report listing all Owners who are delinquent in paying any assessments at the time of the report and describing the status of any action to collect such assessments which remain delinquent (any assessment or installment thereof shall be considered to be delinquent on the 15th day following the due date unless otherwise specified by Board resolution); and
- (b) An annual report consisting of at least the following shall be prepared within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year: (i) a balance sheet showing actual receipts and expenditures; (ii) an operating (income) statement; and (iii) a statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year. Such annual report shall be prepared on an audited, reviewed, or compiled basis, as the Board determines, by an independent public accountant.

The Association shall provide each Owner or its authorized agent a copy of the annual financial report within 10 business days following receipt of a written request for access. In addition, if Florida law requires, the Association shall send a copy of the annual report to each Member by mail or personal delivery promptly following the close of the fiscal year.

3.22. Right To Contract.

The Association shall have the right to contract with any Person for the performance of various duties and functions. This right shall include, without limitation, the right to enter into common management, operational, or other agreements with trusts, condominiums, cooperatives, or other owners or residents associations.

3.23. Enforcement.

The Association may impose sanctions for any violation of the Governing Documents. To the extent the Declaration or Florida law specifically requires, the Board shall comply with the following procedures prior to imposition of sanctions:

(a) Notice. The Board or its delegate shall serve the alleged violator with written notice describing (i) the nature of the alleged violation; (ii) the proposed sanction to be imposed; (iii) a period of not less than 14 days within which the alleged violator may present a written request for a hearing before the Covenants Committee appointed pursuant to Section 5.2; and (iv) a statement that the proposed sanction shall be imposed as contained in the notice unless the alleged violator challenges the violation within 14 days of the notice. If a timely request for a hearing is not made, or if otherwise permitted by the Governing Documents and Florida law, the sanction stated in the notice shall be imposed upon majority vote of the Covenants Committee. The Board or Covenants Committee may suspend any proposed sanction if the violation is cured, or if a diligent effort is being made to cure, within the 14-day period. Such suspension shall not constitute a waiver of the right to sanction future violations of the same or other provisions and rules by any Person. If a violator repeats the violation, or engages in a similar violation, for which notice was given within 12 months after the date of the first notice, the Board shall have

DV 1701 DC 4114 DN 1101 FU D110 108 of 125

the discretion to impose the proposed sanction as if the alleged violations were one continuous violation without the need to serve the alleged violator with additional notice.

- (b) <u>Hearing</u>. If the alleged violator requests a hearing within the allotted 14-day period, the hearing shall be held before the Covenants Committee. The alleged violator shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard. Proof of proper notice shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. A copy of the notice, together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery signed by the officer, director, or agent who delivered such notice shall be considered adequate proof of notice. The notice requirement shall be deemed satisfied if the alleged violator or its representative appears at the meeting. A written statement of the results of the hearing and the sanction, if any, imposed shall be filed with the minutes of the Covenants Committee's meetings.
- (d) Additional Enforcement Rights. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article, subject to any limitations set forth in the Declaration, the Board may elect to enforce any provision of the Governing Documents by self-help (specifically including, but not limited to, towing vehicles that violate parking rules) or, following compliance with the Declaration's dispute resolution procedures, if applicable, by suit at law or in equity to enjoin any violation or to recover monetary damages or both. In any such action, to the maximum extent permissible, the Owner or occupant responsible for the violation of which abatement is sought shall pay all costs, including reasonable Legal Costs actually incurred.

3.24. Board Training Seminar.

The Board may provide, or provide for, as a Common Expense, seminars and continuing educational opportunities designed to educate and inform directors of their responsibilities as directors. Such programs may include instruction on applicable Florida corporate and fiduciary law principles, other issues relating to administering the Community's affairs, and upholding and enforcing the Governing Documents. The Board may retain industry professionals, including property managers, attorneys, and accountants, as appropriate or necessary for such purpose. Each newly elected director and each re-elected director may be required to complete a training seminar within the first six months of assuming the director position.

3.25. Board Standards.

In performing their duties, directors and officers shall act as fiduciaries and are entitled to insulation from liability as provided for directors of corporations by Florida law and as otherwise provided by the Governing Documents.

A director or officer acting in accordance with the business judgment rule shall not be personally liable to the Association or its Members for errors in judgment made in the director's or officer's capacity as such. Unless the Governing Documents require that specific action be taken, the failure to take such specific action shall not, without further showing that the Board acted in violation of the business judgment rule, be deemed a violation of a Board duty. A

DV 1701 DC /117 DN 1/01 FU 011/ 109 of 125

director or officer shall be considered to be acting in accordance with the business judgment rule so long as the director or officer:

- (a) acts within the expressed or implied scope of the Governing Documents and his or her actions are not *ultra vires*;
- (b) affirmatively undertakes to make decisions which are necessary for the Association's continued and successful operation and, when decisions are made, they are made on an informed basis;
- (c) acts on a disinterested basis, promptly discloses any real or potential conflict of interests (pecuniary or other), and avoids participation in such decisions and actions; and
- (d) acts in a non-fraudulent manner and without reckless indifference to the Association's affairs.

Board determinations of the meaning, scope, and application of Governing Document provisions shall be upheld and enforced so long as such determinations are reasonable. The Board shall exercise its power in a fair, nondiscriminatory manner and shall adhere to the procedures established in the Governing Documents.

3.26. Conflicts of Interest; Code of Ethics.

Unless otherwise approved by a majority of the other directors, no Class "A" Director may transact business with the Association or the Association contractor during his or her term as director or within two years after the term expires. A Class "A" director shall promptly disclose in writing to the Board any actual or potential conflict of interest affecting the directors relative to his or her performance as a director. A Class "A" director's failure to make such disclosure shall be grounds for removal by a majority vote of the other Board members. The Board may void any contract which creates a prohibited conflict of interest.

Notwithstanding the above, the directors appointed by the Class "B" Member may be employed by or otherwise transact business with Declarant or any of its Affiliates, and Declarant and its Affiliates may transact business with the Association or its contractors.

Article IV Officers

4.1. Officers.

The Association's officers shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The officers may, but need not, be Board members, Owners, or residents of the Community; however, so long as there is a Class "B" membership, the appointment of officers which are not residents of the Community shall require the prior written consent of the Class "B" Member. The

DV 1701 DC 2110 DN 1701 FO 0110 110 of 125

Board may appoint such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have such authority and perform such duties as the Board prescribes. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.

4.2. Election and Term of Office.

The Board shall elect the Association's officers at the first Board meeting following each Association annual meeting. Officers shall serve until their successors are elected.

4.3. Removal and Vacancies.

Any officer may be removed, at any time, by a vote of at least a majority of the directors. The Board shall appoint a replacement to fill any vacancy in any office for the unexpired portion of the term.

4.4. Powers and Duties.

The Association's officers each shall have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties as the Board may specifically confer or impose. The President shall be the Association's chief executive officer. The Treasurer shall supervise the preparation of the Association's budget, but may delegate all or part of the preparation and notification duties to a finance committee, managing agent, or both. The Secretary shall prepare or supervise the preparation of meeting minutes as required by Florida law.

4.5. Resignation.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. Resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

4.6. Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Etc.

All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks, and other Association instruments shall be executed by an officer, unless the Board provides otherwise, or by such other person or persons as the Board may designate by resolution.

4.7. <u>Compensation</u>.

Compensation of officers shall be subject to the same limitations as compensation of directors under Section 3.18.

DV 1701 DC /110 DN 1/01 FU 0117 111 of 125

4.8. President.

The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors at which he or she is present. He or she shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of the President of a corporation, including, but not limited to, the power, subject to the provisions of Article V, to appoint committees from among the Members from time to time as he or she may in his or her discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. The President shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction, and control of the business of the Association. The President shall be ex-officio a member of all standing committees, and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws.

4.9. Vice President.

The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his or her duties whenever the President is absent, disabled, or refuses or is unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be conferred upon him or her by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws.

4.10. Secretary.

The Secretary shall keep (or cause to be kept) the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and the minutes of all meetings of the Association at the Association's principal office or at such other places as the Board of Directors may order. The Secretary shall keep (or cause to be kept) the seal of the Association in safe custody and shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct. The Secretary shall, in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of meetings of the Members of the Association and of the Board of Directors required by these By-Laws or by law to be given. The Secretary shall maintain (or cause to be maintained) a book of record Owners, listing the names and addresses of the Owners furnished by the Association, and such books shall be changed only at such time as satisfactory evidence of a change in ownership of a Lot is presented to the Secretary. The Secretary shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws. The Secretary may delegate all or a part of such duties to the managing agent.

4.11. Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping, or causing to be kept, full and accurate accounts, tax records, and business transactions of the Association, including accounts of all assets, liabilities, receipts, and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the

DV 1701 OC 4120 DV 1701 PU 0140 112 of 125

deposit of all monies an other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the Declaration and these By-Laws, shall render to the President and Directors, upon request, an account of all of his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial conditions of the Association, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws. The Treasurer may delegate a part of such duties to the managing agent.

Article V Committees

5.1. General.

The Board may create such committees as it deems appropriate to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as the Board may designate by resolution.

Committees shall exercise only such authority as granted by Board resolution, provided the Board may elect not to follow a committee's advice on any matter. Committees may not act without specific Board authority and may not bind the Association contractually or financially.

5.2. Covenants Committee.

The Board shall appoint a Covenants Committee consisting of three persons to serve as a hearing tribunal pursuant to Section 3.23. The Covenants Committee shall be comprised of Members of the Association who are not directors, officers, or employees of the Association or the spouse, parent, child, brother, or sister of a director, officer, or employee.

5.3. Service Area Committees.

In addition to any other committees appointed as provided above, each Service Area which has no formal organizational structure or association may elect a Service Area Committee to determine the nature and extent of services, if any, to be provided to the Service Area by the Association in addition to those provided to all Members of the Association in accordance with the Declaration. A Service Area Committee may advise the Board on any issue but shall not have the authority to bind the Board. Such Service Area Committee, if elected, shall consist of three Members; provided, if approved by the vote of at least 51% of the Owners of Lots within the Service Area, the number may be increased to five.

Service Area Committee members shall be elected for a term of one year or until their successors are elected. Any director elected to the Board from a Service Area shall be an ex officio member of the Service Area Committee. The members of the committee shall elect a chairperson from among themselves, who shall preside at its meetings and shall be responsible for transmitting any and all communications to the Board.

DV 1701 PG 6121 113 of 125

In the conduct of its duties and responsibilities, each Service Area Committee shall conduct itself in accordance with the notice, participation, and quorum requirements applicable to the Board under Section 3.10, 3.11 and 3.12. Meetings of a Service Area Committee shall be open to all Owners of Lots in the Service Area and their representatives. Members of a Service Area Committee may act by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting.

5.4. Other Committees.

In addition to the above, the Board may create additional committees, as it deems necessary and useful. The following are examples of types of committees, along with their purpose, which the Board may create:

- (a) <u>Finance Committee</u> to actively assist the Board, the Treasurer, and the Association's managing agent, if any, in preparing the Association's budget.
- (b) <u>Physical Maintenance Committee</u> to actively assist the Board with maintenance of the Common Maintenance Areas.
- (c) <u>Dispute Resolution Committee</u> to assist in the mediation of disputes concerning the interpretation of Use Restrictions, rules, and other Governing Document provisions and advise the Board on initiating litigation involving the Association (as provided in the Declaration); however, the Dispute Resolution Committee shall not preside over matters relating to the collection of assessments or other fees and charges. Each member of the Dispute Resolution Committee shall attend a Board-approved course on dispute resolution, if the Board so requires.

The Board may establish by resolution the specific scope and limitations on the authority of the above committees.

Article VI <u>Miscellaneous</u>

6.1. Fiscal Year.

The Association's fiscal year shall be the calendar year unless otherwise established by Board resolution.

6.2. Parliamentary Rules.

Except as may be modified by Board resolution, Robert's Rules of Order (the then current edition) shall govern the conduct of Association proceedings when not in conflict with Florida law or the Governing Documents.

BK 1781 PG 6122 114 of 125

6.3. Conflicts.

Conflicts between or among the Governing Documents and Florida law governing documents shall be resolved as directed in the Declaration.

6.4. Books and Records.

- (a) <u>Inspection by Members and Mortgagees</u>. The Board shall make available for inspection and copying by any holder, insurer, or guarantor of a first Mortgage on a Lot, any Member, or the duly appointed representative of any of the foregoing at reasonable times and for a purpose reasonably related to his or her interest in a Lot: the Governing Documents, the membership register, books of account, and the minutes of meetings of the Members, the Board, and committees. The Board shall provide for such inspection to take place at the Association's office or at such other place within the Community as the Board shall designate.
- (b) Rules for Inspection. The Board may establish reasonable rules with respect to: (i) notice to be given to the custodian of the records; (ii) hours and days of the week when such an inspection may be made; (iii) payment of the cost of reproducing documents requested; and (iv) such other matters as the Board deems appropriate. Records shall be made available within 10 business days of the receipt of a written request by an Owner or his or her authorized agent.
- (c) <u>Inspection by Directors</u>. Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all Association books, records, and documents and the physical properties the Association owns or controls. The director's right of inspection includes the right to make a copy of relevant documents at the Association's expense. The Board shall provide for such inspection to take place at the Association's office, the managing agent's office, or at such other place within the Community as the Board shall designate.

6.5. Notices.

- (a) Form of Notice and Method of Delivery. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration or these By-Laws or by law, all notices, demands, bills, statements, or other communications under the Declaration or these By-Laws shall be in writing and may be delivered in person, by United States mail, by private carrier, or if the intended recipient has given its prior written authorization to use such method of delivery, by telephone facsimile, or electronic mail with written confirmation of transmission.
- (b) <u>Delivery Address</u>. Notices shall be delivered or sent to the intended recipient as follows:
- (i) if to a Member, at the address, telephone facsimile number, or e-mail address which the Member has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address has been designated, at the address of the Unit of such Member;
- (ii) if to the Association, the Board, or a committee of either, at the address, telephone facsimile number, or e-mail address of the principal office of the Association or its

DV 1701 DC /177 DN 1/01 FU D1/J 115 of 125

managing agent, or at such other address as the Association shall designate by notice in writing to the Members pursuant to this Section; or

- (iii) if to the Declarant, at the principal address of the Declarant as it appears on the Secretary of State's records, or at such other address as the Declarant shall designate by notice in writing to the Association pursuant to this Section.
- (c) <u>Effective Date</u>. Notice sent in accordance with subsections (a) and (b) shall be deemed to have been duly given and effective:
- (i) if sent by United States mail, when deposited with the U. S. Postal Service, correctly addressed, with first class or higher priority postage prepaid;
- (ii) if delivered personally or by private carrier, when actually delivered to the address of the intended recipient, as evidenced by the signature of the person at such address who accepts such delivery; however, if such delivery is refused or if the intended recipient has contracted with the private carrier to leave any deliveries without obtaining a signature evidencing receipt, the notice shall be deemed duly given and effective if the attempt to deliver was timely made;
- (iii) if sent by telephone facsimile or electronic mail, upon transmission, as evidenced by a printed confirmation of transmission.

6.6. Amendment.

- (a) By Class "B" Member. During the Class "B" Control Period, the Class "B" Member may amend these By-Laws unilaterally, subject to the approval requirements in Article XVI of the Declaration, if applicable; however, if the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs ("VA") or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") has issued project approval for VA-guaranteed or HUD-insured Mortgages, respectively, then either shall have the right to veto amendments to these By-Laws during the Class "B" Control Period.
- (b) By the Membership. Except as provided above, these By-Laws may be amended only by the affirmative vote or written consent of Members representing at least 67% of the total Class "A" votes in the Association, and the consent of the Class "B" Member, if such exists. Notwithstanding the above, the percentage of votes necessary to amend a specific clause shall not be less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken under that clause. The approval requirements set forth in Article XVI of the Declaration also shall be met, if applicable.
- (c) <u>Validity and Effective Date of Amendments</u>. Amendments to these By-Laws shall become effective upon recordation unless a later effective date is specified therein. Any procedural challenge to an amendment must be made within six months of its recordation, or

such amendment shall conclusively be presumed to have been validly adopted. In no event shall a change of conditions or circumstances operate to amend any provisions of these By-Laws.

No amendment may remove, revoke, or modify any right or privilege of Declarant or the Class "B" Member without the written consent of Declarant, the Class "B" Member, or the assignee of such right or privilege.

DV 1701 DC 2104 DA 1701 FU 0124 116 of 125

DN 1701 PG 6125 117 of 125 CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Kingsfield Lakes Homeowners Association, Inc., a Florida corporation;

That the foregoing By-Laws constitute the original By-Laws of said Association, as duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors thereof held on the Ht day of Leb , 2000

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of said Association this 14 day of 1002

Secretary

DX 1701 PG 6126 118 of 125

EXHIBIT F 10 YEAR FISCAL PROGRAM* Annual Homeowners Association Budget

EXPENSES	YEAR 1	YEAR 2	YEAR 3	YEAR 4	YEAR 5		YEAR 7	YEAR 8		YEAR 10
Street Lights	8,500	8,840	9,194	9,561	9,944	10,342	10,755	11,185	11,633	12,098
Pond Management	5,000	5,200	5,408	5,624	5,849	6,083	6,327	6,580	6,843	7,117
Electricity-Pool-Well-Cabana	8,000	8,320	8,653	8,999	9,359	9,733	10,123	10,527	10,949	11,386
Grounds Constract-Common	55,000	57,200	59,488	61,868	64,342	66,916	69,593	72,376	75,271	78,282
Irrigation, Repair	2,000	2,080	2,163	2,250	2,340	2,433	2,531	2,632	2,737	2,847
Pool Maintenance	4,800	4,992	5,192	5,399	5,615	5,840	6,074	6,316	6,569	6,832
Pool Equipment Repair	500	520	541	562	585	608	633	658	684	712
Cabana Maintenance	4,800	4,992	5,192	5,399	5,615	5,840	6,074	6,316	6,569	6,832
Water	2,400	2,496	2,596	2,700	2,808	2,920	3,037	3,158	3,285	3,416
Management Fee	5,400	5,616	5,841	12,088	12,572	13,074	13,597	14,141	14,707	15,295
Entry Wall Maintenance	3,000	3,120	3,245	3,375	3,510	3,650	3,796	3,948	4,106	4,270
Landscape Replacement	10,500	10,920	11,357	11,811	12,284	12,775	13,286	13,817	14,370	14,945
Contingency	2,250	2,340	2,434	2,531	2,632	2,737	2,847	2,961	3,079	3,202
Permits and Fees	300	312	324	337	351	365	380	395	411	427
Legal Expense	1,200	1,248	1,298	1,350	1,404	1,460	1,518	1,579	1,642	1,708
Administrative Expenses	600	624	649	675	702	730	759	790	821	854
Well Repair	800	832	865	900	936	973	1,012	1,053	1,095	1,139
bana Repairs	800	832	865	900	936	973	1,012	1,053	1,095	1,139
್ಷite Keys	300	312	324	337	351	365	380	395	411	427
Grounds Cleanup	1,200	1,248	1,298	1,350	1,404	1,460	1,518	1,579	1,642	1,708
Playground Maintenance	500	520	541	562	585	608	633	658	684	712
Pool Furniture Maintenance	1,200	1,248	1,298	1,350	1,404	1,460	1,518	1,579	1,642	1,708
Miscellaneous Expenses	850	884	919	956	994	1,034	1,076	1,119	1,163	1,210
Pool Telephone	960	998	1,038	1,080	1,123	1,168	1,215	1,263	1,314	1,366
Corp Report/Tax Prep	1,565	1,628	1,693	1,760	1,831	1,904	1,980	2,059	2,142	2,227
Gen. Liab. And Prop. Insurance	2,000	2,080	2,163	2,250	2,340	2,433	2,531	2,632	2,737	2,847
Directors & Officers Insurance	800	832	865	900	936	973	1,012	1,053	1,095	1,139
Mitigation-Monitoring	4,000	4,160	4,326	4,499	4,679	4,867	5,061	5,264	5,474	5,693
Reserves	6,950	7,228	7,517	7,818	8,131	8,456	8,794	9,146	9,512	9,892
	136,175	141,624	147,290	159,196	165,565	172,188	179,076	186,240	193,691	201,439
\$PER UNIT/YR	570	593	616	666	693	720	749	779	810	843

^{*} The foregoing statements are only forecasts and summary in nature. Costs may be influenced by economic factors, services requested or required by the board and availability of qualified labor and contractors.

DV 1701 DC 4197 DN 1101 FO 0147 119 of 125

EXHIBIT G

MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

It is anticipated that the budgetary information submitted for the first year of operations will provide for adequate funds to maintain and operate the facilities provided by Developer.

Subsequent years may require additional funds, which will be assessed and collected as required by the Declaration of Protective Covenants, Conditions, Easements and Restrictions to which each lot is subject.

The maintenance of the open space areas, depicted on the plat, will include appropriate routine mowing, tree trimming, pest and weed control, irrigation repair, plant trimming and replacement and lake cleaning and treatment.

The lake areas require continual inspection and maintenance, provision for which has been made at least quarterly in compliance with various regulatory permits, not limited to Southwest Florida Water Management District * and Manatee County. The above permit conditions are regulated and performed by the Kingsfield Lakes Homeowners Association, Inc., to which the Declaration is subject.

In all events, a program is being established and will be established respecting all areas of the Subdivision, so as to assure compliance with the requirements of the regulatory bodies of Manatee County and specifically its Land Development Code.

* Southwest Florida Water Management District Permit # 43022486.000 The operation and maintenance entity shall submit inspection reports in the form required by the District, in accordance with the following Schedule.

For systems utilizing effluent filtration or exfiltration, the inspections shall be performed two (2) years after operation is authorized and every two (2) years thereafter.

EXHIBIT H

NOTICE TO BUYERS

To the Purchasers of Lots in Kingsfield Lakes,, a subdivision, Manatee County, Florida:

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the purchase of your lot is subject to:

- 1.) The Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Kingsfield Lakes, a Subdivision, as amended (the "Declaration"), a copy of which is provided upon execution of your contract to purchase.
- 2.) Ownership of a lot in said Subdivision automatically makes you a member of the <u>Kingsfield Lakes</u>
 <u>Homeowners Association, Inc.</u>, a Florida non-profit corporation, and you are subject to its Bylaws and
 Regulations. Each Lot entitles its Owner to one vote in the affairs of the Association.
- 3.) Kingsfield Lakes Homeowners Association, Inc., owns and has the right and power to assess and collect, as provided in its Bylaws, the costs of maintenance of the Common Property, which you have the right to enjoy, as well as other costs as provided in the Declaration, in accordance with the Declaration. A proposed budget for the first year is attached as Exhibit "F".
- 4.) Landscape plantings and irrigation shall be provided at various Common Area and Landscape Buffer locations within the Subdivision, as shown in the Final Site Plan for Kingsfield Lakes, a Subdivision. Purchasers are hereby notified that such plantings are a code requirement, constituting an obligation on the part of the Kingsfield Lakes Homeowners Association, Inc., to Manatee County for Subdivision approval, and as such, plantings and irrigation may not be removed, altered, or destroyed. Maintenance and replacement of such irrigation and plantings shall be borne as a Common Expense by the Association. A "Tree Planting Summary", which defines requirements for approved Subdivision tree installation, is attached hereto as "Attachment A".
- 5.) Section 4.1, Paragraph (gg) of the Manatee County Land Development code states:

"Landscaping Local Residential Streets: Each property owner shall plant, within twenty-five (25) feet of the right-of-way of each local street, prior to Certificate of Occupancy, one canopy tree meeting the requirements of Section 715.10.5 of the Manatee County Land Development Code for every fifty (50) linear feet, or substantial fraction thereof, of right-of-way. None of these required trees shall be planted within a public or private utilities easement.

The trees shall be spaced no closer together than twenty-five (25) feet, unless a decorative grouping or alternative method is chose. Existing native trees should be used to fulfill these requirements wherever they meet the spacing and size requirements of this paragraph. Palm trees may be utilized, when grouped at lease two (2) together to count as one (1) canopy tree. Responsibility for installation and maintenance is each property owner's. In the event a street tree dies or is removed, the owner of the lot is responsible to replace the tree within thirty (30) days."

Initial street tree planting, in conformance to this requirement, is met by Centex Homes with completion of home construction on each Lot.. The Purchaser will be subject to maintenance and replacement requirements of trees as provided for in the Code.

6.)	The Maintenance for Right of Way Island agreemnt can be found in ORBook	<u> 78</u>	Page(s) 6134	ŀ

7.) Reference is hereby made to the conditions more specifically called out in Article XII 12.1 in the DCCRs for Kingsfield Lakes. Summarized (though the DCCRs must be referenced for further information)

DV 1701 PG 6127 121 of 125

Any Conservation Easements so granted shall be subject to the requirements of Section 704.06, Florida Statutes and the Easement Grantee, the Manatee County Land Development Code and the following provisions. <u>Prohibited Acts and Uses</u>. Any activity on or use of the Conservation Easement Property inconsistent with the purpose of a Conservation Easement is prohibited. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following activities and uses are expressly prohibited:

- (i) constructing or placing buildings, roads, signs, billboards, or other advertising, utilities or other structures on or above the ground;
- (ii) dumping or placing soil or other substances or material as landfill or dumping or placing of trash, waste or unsightly or offensive materials;
 - (iii) removing, mowing, trimming or destroying trees, shrubs, or other vegetation;
- (iv) excavating, dredging, or removing loam, peat, gravel, soil, rock, or other material substances in such a manner as to affect the surface;
- (v) using the surface area of the Conservation Easement, except for purposes that permit the land or water area to remain predominantly in its natural condition;
- (vi) activities detrimental to drainage, flood control, water conservation, erosion control, soil conservation, or fish and wildlife habitat preservation;
- (vii) acting upon or using the Conservation Easement in a manner detrimental to such retention of land or water areas;
- (viii) acting upon or using the Conservation Easement in a manner detrimental to the preservation of the structural integrity or physical appearance of sites or properties of historical, architectural, archaeological, or cultural significance;
- (ix) constructing or installing utilities on, below, or above the ground without appropriate local, state, and federal permits or other authorization; and
 - (x) applying of herbicides, pesticides, or fertilizers.

The foregoing statements are only summary in nature and shall not be deemed to supersede or modify the provisions of the Declaration, or any lot sales contract between Buyer and Developer.

BK 1781 PG 6130 122 of 125

REQUIRED TREES - PLANTING SUMMARY

Attachment "A" Kingsfield Lakes Phase 1

Tree Planting Location Summary

Type: Oak Location: Front Yard

Type: Oak Location: Planting Location	D.B.H. Size						
Block / Lot Number	2"	2 1/2"	4"	6"			
				-			
1		1					
2		1					
. 3		1					
4		1					
5		1					
6		1					
7		. 1					
8		1					
. 9		1					
10		1		<u> </u>			
11	····	1					
12		1					
13	-4	1					
14		1	******				
15		1					
92		1					
93		1 1					
94		1					
95		1					
124		1					
125		1					
126		1					
127		1					
128		1					
129		1					
130		1					
131	····	1					
132		1					
133	·····	1					
134		1					
135		1					
136		1					
137		1					
138		1					
139		1					
140		1					
141		1					
142		1					

Planting Location	D.B.H. Size				
Block / Lot Number	2"	2 1/2 "	4"	6"	
172		1			
173		1			
174		1			
175		1			
. 176		1			
177		1			
178		1			
179		1			
180		1			
181		1			
182		1			
183		1			
184		1			
185		1			
186		1			
187		1			
188		_ 1			
189		1			
190		1			
191		1			
192		1			
193		1			
194		1			
195		1			
196		1			
197		1			
198 ,		1			
199		1			
200		1			
201		1			
202		1			
203		1			
204	ĺ	1			
205		1			
206		1			
207		1			
208		1			
209	l	1			
210		1			

DV 1701 PC 6131 123 of 125

143	1	I	
144	1		
145	1		
146	1		
147	1		
148	1		
149	1	1	
150	1		
151	1		
152	1		
153	1		
154	1		
155	1		
156	1		
157	1		
158	1		
159	1		
160	1		·
161	1 .		
162	1		
163	1		
164	1		,
165	1	·	
166	1		
167	1		
168	1		
169	1		
170	1		
171	1		

20			
211	1		T
212	1		1
213	1		
214	1		
215	1		
216	1		
217	1		
218	1		
219	1		
220	1		
221	1		
222	1		
223	1		
224	1		
225	1		
226	1		
227	1		
228	1		
229	1		
230	1		
231	1		
232	1		
233	1		
234	1		
235	1	·	
236	1		
237	1		
238	1		·
239	1		
15' Greenbelt Buffer	103		

REQUIRED TREES – PLANTING SUMMARY

Attachment "A"
Kingsfield Lakes Phase 1

TREE REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT SCHEDULE

Existing Trees To		D.B.H. Size					
Be Removed	4" - 15"	16" - 30"	16" - 30"	Over 30"			
Oak	37	1	•				
Total Replacement	37	2@5"	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				
Trees Required	@ 3"	@5"					

ACCEPTED IN OPEN SESSION 1-5-0%
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MANATEE COUNTY

BK 1781 PG 6132 124 of 125

EXHIBITI

LIST OF HOLDINGS, OF KINGSFIELD LAKES, A SUBDIVISION

The following is a list of holdings of Kingsfield Lakes, a Subdivision, completed by the Developer, to-wit:

- 1.) <u>Tract 401</u>: Consists of 65,859 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area, private recreation area
- 2.) <u>Tract 501</u>: Consists of 197,931 square feet (MOL) designated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 3.) Tract 502: Consists of 128,752 square feet (MOL) designated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 4.) <u>Tract 503</u>: Consists of 74,446 square feet (MOL) designated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 5.) <u>Tract 504</u>: Consists of 132,088 square feet (MOL) designated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 6.) <u>Tracat 505</u>: Consists of 99,473 square feet (MOL) designated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 7.) Tract 506: Consists of 35,133 square feet (MOL) deisgnated as a private drainage area and public flowage easement.
- 8.) Tract 601: Consists of 88,166 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area landscape, berm and roadway buffer.
- 9.) Tract 602: Consists of 71,240 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area landscape, berm and roadway buffer.
- 10.) <u>Tract 603</u>: Consists of 21,473 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area, preserved open space
- 11.) <u>Tract 604:</u> Consists of 43,694 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area and public flowage easement.
- 12.) <u>Tract 605</u>: Consists of 3,055 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area and 20° roadway buffer
- 13.) <u>Tract 606</u>: Consists of 2,650 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area and 20" roadway buffer
- 14.) <u>Tract 607:</u> Consists of 105,817square feet (MOL) designated as private common area.
- 15.) <u>Tract 608</u>: Consists of 7,724 square feet (MOL) designated as private common area and public flowage easement.
- 16.) <u>Tract 701:</u> Consists of 67,326 square feet (MOL) designated as private preserve area and public flowage easement.
- 17.) <u>Tract 702:</u> Consists of 237,084 square feet (MOL) designated as private preserve area and public flowage easement.
- 18.) <u>Tract 703:</u> Consists of 48,713 square feet (MOL) designated as private preserve area and public flowage easement.
- 19.) <u>Tract 704:</u> Consists of 29,736 square feet (MOL) designated as private preserve area and public flowage easement.
- 20.) <u>Tract 705:</u> Consists of 88,272 square feet (MOL) designated as private preserve area and public flowage easement.

It is contemplated that the Association will, upon turnover of the Association, take title to the above-described common areas and use and maintain the same pursuant to the Restrictions respecting said Subdivision and the Land Development Code of Manatee County.



RIGHT OF ENTRY

and

COMPLIANCE WITH MANATEE COUNTY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

The Manatee County Land Development Code, Ordinance 90-01, adopted on July 25, 1990 by the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County, Florida requires adequate ownership and management measures be provided in residential developments to protect and perpetually maintain all common improvements and open space. The following provisions are stipulated in Chapter Nine of the Land Development Code (Subdivision Procedures and Standards), Section 909.5, and are hereby incorporated as part of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for KINGSFIELD LAKES.

SUBDIVISION

- I. Right of Entry by County. The Manatee County law enforcement officers, health and pollution control personnel, emergency medical service personnel, and fire fighters, while in pursuit of their duties, are hereby granted authority to enter upon any and all portions of the Community Common Areas as may be necessary to perform those duties.
- II. Ownership of the Community Common Areas. Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, the Community Association shall not dispose of any Common Area, by sale or otherwise, except to an organization conceived and organized to own and maintain such Common Areas, without first offering to dedicate the same to Manatee County or other appropriate governmental agency.
- III. Disturbance of Common Areas. No lands in the Common Open Space shall be denuded, defaced, or otherwise disturbed in any manner at any time, except for maintenance or repair, without the prior written approval of the Manatee County Planning Director.
- IV. Maintenance and Care. In the event the Association or its successors fail to maintain the Common Area in reasonable order and condition, the provisions of the Manatee County Land Development Code allow for Manatee County, upon notice and hearing, to enter said Common Area for the purpose of maintaining same. The cost of such maintenance by the County shall be assessed pro-ratedly and such charges will be made payable by property owners within sixty (60) days after receipt of a statement therefor, and shall become a lien on the property if unpaid at the end of such period.
- V. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Declaration, no violation of federal, state, or local law shall be permitted.
- VI. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Declaration relating to amendments, neither this Article nor any provision of this Declaration affecting this Article may be amended without the written consent of Manatee County.
 - * The EXHIBIT label is used when this notice is referred to in the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions and attached to that document. If that's not the case, this notice must be separately notarized and recorded.

Updated 12/27/99